
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEj\fBLY 
FOURTEENTH SESSION 

Official Records 

UN. ·r(eRARY 

JUIVlO. 

UN/SA COllECTiON 

THIRD COMMITTEE, 933rd 
MEETING 

Thursday, 22 October 1959, 
at 3.20 p .m . 

CO NTENTS 

Agenda item 12: 

Report of the Econom ic and Social Council 
(chapters VI and VII) (continued) 

Page 

General debate (continued). • • . . • . • . • • • 125 

Cha i r man: Mrs. Georgett e CISEL ET CBeloium). 

A GE NDA ITE M 12 

Report of the Economic ond Sociol Council (chopters VI 
and VII) (A! 41 43) (continued) 

GENERAL DEBATE (continued) 

1. Mr. DUMITRU (Romania) stressed the comprehen­
sive nature of the efforts made by United Nations 
organs in the social field and said that chapters VI 
and vn of the report of the Economic and Social Coun­
cil (A/ 4143) bore witness to a substantial amount of 
work. The Romanian delegation awaited with interest 
the next report on the world social situation, which 
would deal with social development in relation to 
economic development, 

2, It was apparent from the International Survey of 
Programmes of Social Development (E/CN,5/332)V 
that, between 1953 and 1957, the rate of execution of 
social development programmes had slowed down, 
particularly in the under-developed countries. The 
introduction to the annual report of the Secretary­
General (A/ 4132/ Add,1) expr essed the same view, The 
lack of housing, the artificial inflation of rents , the 
stagnation of certain rural projects, the r ise in food 
prices and the effects of the recession on the under­
developed countries were all indications of that trend, 
The situation was all the more acute because, during 
the same period, needs had considerably increased 
and people were becoming increasingly desirous of 
a decent level of living. It was paradoxical that a large 
part of mankind was still living In poverty at a time 
when scientific and technological discoveries were 
being used for productive purposes and should thus 
enable enormous progress to be made. 

3. The stagnation that had been observed could not be 
attributed to the normal evolution of ideas. The fact 
was that social development had not been the main 
concern of most Governments , and it was deplorable 
that the armaments r ace was swallowing up consider­
able sums which could have been used to r aise levels 
of living. The proposal for general and complete dis­
armament currently before the General Assembly 
(A/4219) was designed to remedy that situation. 

.!/u nited Nations publication, Sales No.: 59.1V .2. 

NEW YORK 

4. It was impossible to over-emphasize the close 
interdependence between social and economic develop­
ment. The primary producing countries could not raise 
and stabilize their level of living as l ong as they were 
so sensitive to world market fluctuations and as long 
as they did not enjoy an economic independence which 
enabled them to exploit their resources equitably. In 
Romania, social progress had been guaranteed by the 
establishment of a pr osperous national economy. In 
1959, on the occasion of the fifteenth anniversary of 
the liberation, important social measures had been 
introduced, Increased productivity and production had 
made it possible for wages and retirement pensions 
to be r aised and the prices of many manufactured 
goods and Iood products to be cut, In 1958, the State 
had devoted more than 25 per cent of its budget to 
social and cultural expenditure. The rate of housing 
production was accelerating, and the expansion of 
medical and health services was in full swing. The 
exchange of information between countries should be 
intensified, and it was regrettable that in certain docu• 
ments the experience of the socialist countr ies had 
been dealt with in summary fashion. 

5. The social problems of the modern world should 
be posed in scientific and general terms; they could 
be solved only by measures taken at the national level 
under the responsibility of the State. The conclusions 
set out in the International Survey of Programmes of 
Social Development showed how necessary it was for 
the State to take large-scale action. 

6. As was stated in the report of the UNICEF Execu­
tive Board on its session of March 1959, the success 
of UNICEF influence could not be measured solely by 
the number of direc t child beneficiaries but by its 
effect on government planning. Y However extensive 
and efficacious the assistance rendered by UNICEF, 
tt could never replace action by the State. He warmly 
suppor ted the change in UNICEF policy. 

7. Mrs. DIEMER (Netherlands) expressed particular 
interest in chapter VTI, section VID, of the Council ' s 
report (A/ 4143), for her country was again a member 
of the Commission on the Status of Women, She noted 
with satisfaction that the number of countries in which 
women enjoyed full political rights had continued to 
increase. The stage had been reached when the Com­
mission 1s main objective should be to encourage women 
to make effective use of those rights and to participate 
more fully In public life. Regional seminars were an 
excellent means of achieving that result, especially 
in the under-developed regions , She approved of the 
Commission's decision to invite non- governmental 
organizations to further the exchange of experience 
among women (see A/4143, para, 562). 

8. The exercise of rights in private law should be 
encouraged in the same way, and she supported the 

Ysee Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, TwentY­
seventh Session, Supplement No. 2A, para 30. 

125 A/C.3/SR,933 



126 General At.sembly - Fourteenth Session - Third Committee 

suggestion that seminars on such suhjects as the status 
of women in family law should be organized (A/4143, 
para. 577). 

9. While the Commission on the Status of Women 
should devote its attention primaril y to the education 
of women. it should also seek to prorr .ote understanding 
among men concerning that aspect of social progress. 

10. The Netherlands delegation supported Council 
resolution 722 F (XXVlll) regarding age of retirement 
and right to pension; the question should indeed be 
studied in greater detail with due regard for the other 
aspects of the status of women. The differences of 
opinion which bad been revealed h the Commission 
on the Status of Women derived from the fact that 
reduction of the optional retirement age or of pension 
rights for women was regarded by s :>me as a handicap 
for women and by others as discr .mlnation agains t 
male workers. The equality ofthese.cesdidnot neces­
sarily imply equality of treatment in every case; it 
might even be asked whether corr.plete equality of 
treatment might not constitute, on the contrary, dis­
crimination against one of the sexes. From the biologi­
cal point of view, the life expectancy of women was 
higher than that of men, and at r etir•lment age women 
no longer had tolook afteryoungchilc.ren.On the other 
hand, they had to perform household duties outside 
their working day. 

11. Women now participated In ecoromlc life andhad 
adapted themselves to the workada~· world as it had 
been fashioned by men. They now had to find their 
own level, and measures which tool: into account the 
difference between the nature and ~>tatus of men and 
women could not be considered discriminatory. 

12. In the Netherlands, the system of pensions was 
the same for men and women. Tht• reason why the 
question of retirement age did not give rise to any 
difficulties there was probably th~ t the number of 
married women who worked was few and that conditions 
of life were satisfactory. The situation might be dif­
ferent elsewhere. Improvement of ht man relations at 
work and the application of the prin< iple of equal pay 
for equal work would help to lncre ase the interest 
that women took in their job, a devebpment which, In 
certain cases, might help to solve tho problem. 

13. Mr. HARF AUCHE (Lebanon) deS•!rlbed the social 
s ituation In his country in the light of the principal 
recommendations set forth in chaptE•rs VI and vn of 
the Council's report (A/4143). As a result of the dis­
equilibrium between its expanding P•>pulatlon and its 
limited means of subsistence, Lebanon was tradition­
ally a country of emigration. However, in addition to 
the fact that emigration was becontlng dally more 
difficult, Lebanon had admitted a cons iderable number 
of Palestine refugees, who now amounted to one-tenth 
of Its population. Such a situation ob,·iously r equired 
a political solution. It remained none the less true 
that, in the preparation of economic and social pro­
grammes, the Lebanese Government was compelled 
to take into account the effects ofthatE<Xceptional sur­
plus population. 

14. The financing of housing constru•Jtlon still came 
entirely within the private sector. Although that sector 
was providing increasingly greater fac 1lities, housing 
remained costly for the average Lel anese. For its 
part, the Government was considerin~ a project for 
the provision of low- cost housing for civil servants. 

15. Health conditions were satisfactory, and a bill 
had been introduced to ensure free medical treatment 
for the population as a whole. His delegation endorsed 
the. Council's recommendation that obstacles to inter­
nationat' trade in pharmaceutical products should be 
removed (Council resolution 731 I (XXVID)). 

16. Lebanon was a country of small holdings, and that 
was an important factor in its social equilibrium . Al­
though there was therefore no need for carrying out 
land r eform, a bill had been Intr oduced to enable the 
State to buy uncultivated land. 
17. The Lebanese Government hoped soon to institute 
free primary education. It was co-operating with 
various International bodies for the suppr ession of the 
illegal traffic in narcotic drugs and the traffic in per­
sons. In the field of human rights it scrupulously 
r espected freedom of information and generously 
granted the right of asylum. Furthermore, women 
enjoyed full political rights. 

18. As two-thirds of mankind lived in very precarious 
conditions, it was proper that the efforts ofthe United 
Nations should be concentrated on the improvement 
of levels of living in the under-developed countries of 
Asia and Africa. The Lebanese delegation had ex­
pressed the hope that the membership of the Economic 
and Social Council would be increased by six, with a 
geographical redistribution designed to ensure a broad­
er representation of those countries. If that could be 
done, the practical implementation ofthe United Nations 
programmes would certainly be expedited. 

19. Mrs. KUKHARENKO (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist 
Republic) noted that while some results had been 
achieved by the United Nations and the specialized 
agencies in the social and humanitarian fields, social 
progress was far from having attained the same stage 
in the world as a whole. In many countries there was 
a considerable divergence between what hadbeendone 
and what could be done, but that fact had not been 
sufficiently stressed in the report of the Economic 
and Social Council. The United Nations and the spe­
c ialized agencies had an obligation to help the coun­
tries where that problem arose to find practical means 
of solving it. In that connexion, she stressed the use­
fulness of the surveys of programmes of social devel­
opment in enabling each country to profit from the 
experience of others. 
20. Economic devel opment and social development 
could not be considered one apart from the other. In 
order to improve the living conditions of its people, 
a country must take economic measures, and In par­
ticular those by which the national income could be 
increased and be distributed more fairly and the 
problem of employment could be solved. She pointed 
out that In the Ukrainian SSR the per ca£ut national 
income, which had been fifteen times big er in 1958 
than before the Revolution, was expected to increase 
still further during the next seven year s . Since social 
development was, moreover, one of the positive factors 
in economic development, only a balanced economic and 
social development would enable the under-developed 
countries to escape from a backward economy and 
rapidly satisfy the needs of their people. 

21. The Council had very rightly concerned itself with 
the extremely serious problem of housing. Population 
growth and rural migration were not the only reasons 
why the housing situation had been aggravated in recent 
years . If all countries had taken effective steps to 



933rd meeting-22 October 1959 127 

reduce international tension and thus free the con .. 
siderable sums devoted to armaments, the current 
situation would be infinitely better. Implementation of 
the plan for general and complete disarmament which 
had been submitted to the General Assembly would 
enable vast social programmes to be carried out. The 
solution of the housing problem also depended on the 
importance ascribed to it in each country and especial­
ly on the role which the Government was prepared to 
play. In the Ukrainian SSR, where more than half the 
towns and villages had been destroyed during the Sec­
ond World War, there was still a housing shortage, 
but under vast programmes drawn up by the Govern• 
ment, over 64.4 million square metres of housing had 
already been built. Between 1959 and 1965 a further 
58 million square metres of housing were to be con­
structed. For their part, the people had built some 
158,000 individual houses. Much of the effort made by 
the Ukrainian Government was being directed towards 
the rural areas in order to eliminate the divergence 
between them and the towns. The experience acquired 
by the Ukrainian SSR and other socialist States could 
be extremely useful to countries whichhaddifficulties 
in planning and carrying out their social development 
programmes. 

22. The Ukrainian delegation, as sponsor of the text 
adopted by the General Assembly as resolution 1283 
(XIII) concerning the organization of an International 
Health and Medical Research Year, had been pleased 
to note the measures taken to give effect to that reso­
lution. The Ukrainian Government was giving very 
careful study to its plan for taking part in that im­
portant event. 

23. It was difficult to understand why the Council 1s 
report should have made no mention of co-operation 
in the fields of science and culture when that question 
was the subject of three General Assembly resolutions. 
Because of its conviction that such co-operation was 
indispensable for the relaxation of international ten­
sion, the Ukrainian Government was doing everything 
in its power to promote it. In 1958, the Ukrainian SSR 
had received 1,112 representatives from sixty-three 
countries; in addition, numerous representatives from 
the political, scientific and artistic fields in the Ukraine 
had gone abroad. She expressed the hope that the 
Council would in future attach greater importance to 
international co-operation and that its long-term plans 
would be more specific and practical. 

24. Begum Aziz AHMED (Pakistan) recognized that 
economic development was only justified when its 
purpose was to raise the level of living of a people or, 
in other words, when it was complementary to social 
development. Since, however, the under-developed 
countries lacked the resources for raising their level 
of living, they would have to give priority to economic 
development as a means of providing such resources. 
Most of their difficulties were of a financial nature, 
and there was no doubt that a halt in the armaments 
race would release money which could be used to help 
to raise the levels of living of the least favoured peo­
ples. 

25. One of the most serious problems of the current 
era was housing, and her delegation was pleased to 
note that the Economic and Social Council had approved 
a long-term programme of concerted international 
action in that field (resolution 731 B (XXVID)). During 
the period 1953 to 1957, efforts had been made in 

Pakistan to increase the number of dwellings and im­
prove their quality. The objectives, although modest, 
had not been fully attained, but the tempo of progress 
had not slackened. The fact that some dwellings had 
been built as a result of Government loans showed 
that assistance from the public authorities could do a 
great deal to lessen the housing shortage. The build­
ing of dwellings for refugees had made spectacular 
progress. In six months, homes had been found for 
more than 100,000 refugees in 15,000 housing units 
built near Karachi. The housing shortage was partly 
the result of movements of population from rural areas 
to towns, where the level of living was generally better. 
That was why it might be desirable for the under­
developed countries to concentrate their efforts on 
raising the level of living of the rural population. 

26. She stressed the value of the programme of ad­
visory social welfare services, and said that her 
delegation would in the Fifth Committee support the 
Secretary-General's proposals for an increased allo­
cation to meet the expanded needs of that programme 
(A/C.5/777, paras. 35-38). 

27. A country like Pakistan could not raise its level 
of living unless it succeeded in increasing agricultural 
production and checking population pressures. That 
was one of the problems which the Government had 
taken into account in its second five-year plan (196o-
1965) in which provision was made, among other things, 
for family planning. Her delegation had been very 
interested to note the views of the Population Com­
mission with regard to demographic studies and pro­
grammes (A/4143, para. 449). Co-operation between 
Governments in that sphere should be particularly 
fruitful. 

28. The aid which UNICEF had given to Pakistan had 
always been on a generous scale, and at the current 
time UNICEF was again helping to carry out various 
schemes that met pressing needs. In spite of its ef­
forts and of the effectiveness of its work, UNICEF 
could only help a fraction of the mothers and children 
in need of assistance. There was no better way in 
which Governments could express their gratitude to 
UNICEF than by continuing to assist it with their fi­
nancial contributions. 

29. She recalled the differences of opinion which had 
arisen in the Commission on the Status of Women with 
respect to the age of retirement and pointed out that 
in Pakistan women working in Government offices 
retired at the same age as men. 

30, Her delegation was pleased to know that three 
seminars were planned for 1960, to take place in Asia, 
Africa and Europe (see A/ 4143, para. 57 4). Such meet­
ings were particularly fruitful, especially at the re­
gional level, although international seminars of world 
scope might well prove valuable and worth while if the 
topic chosen was of sufficient interest to countries 
belonging to several regions. 

31. Mr. REVOL (France) expressed the great satis­
faction of his Government at the work which had been 
done by UNICEF and its gratitude for what UNICEF 
had done in the countries of the French Community 
in Africa and in Madagascar. While it had been estab­
lished to meet an emergency situation, that exemplary 
international agency had proved able to adapt itself 
to later developments and was devoting itself increas­
ingly to long-term activities on behalf of children. 



128 General Asnembly - Fourteenth Session - Third Committee 

32. Of the 550 million children li·ring in UNICEF­
assisted countries, only 55 m11lion tenefited directly 
from such assistance. It did not n•:cessarily follow 
that the Fund should increase its pro~rammes tenfold, 
for all children were not in equal need of assistance, 
but it should continue and extend its activities, which 
were unique in character. Far from attempting to 
take the pl ace of Governments and the specialized 
agencies, UNICEF made a financial 1:nd technical con­
tribution to programmes proposed ·)y Governments. 
Thus the programmes did not merdy r emain in the 
planning stage, and the effectiveness of the allocations 
made by UNICEF was multiplied by the number of 
organizations which took part in the programmes and 
added their own resources. 

33. Referring t riefly to the argu:nents which had 
arisen in connexion with the question of possible 
UNICEF assistance to primary education, he con­
gratulated the Executive Board on t he wisdom it had 
shown in deciding to grant assistance In that field 
while at the same time limiting it to the training of 
teacher s specializing in tr aditional U:~ICEF activities. 

34. The recommendation made to S1 ates by the Eco­
nomic and Social Council in its 1 esolution 731 C 
(XXVIII), concerning the international survey of pro­
grammes of social development, might be helpful in 
accelerating the pace of social prog~ ess. Joint action 
could not be r eally effective until all ohstacles to social 
development had been discovered anc understood. 

35. In its resolution 731 D (XXVlll), concerning social 
services, the Council had intended t> empha.size that 
studies such as the publication enti :led Training for 
Social Work: Third International Survey V should be 
genuinely international in character. 1 ranee, like many 
European and Latin American countr .es, had long been 
concer ned with social services. It had adopted an 
original approach and its experienCE: should be m ade 
knov;n to countries still in the pr oces:> of development, 
which were trying to formulate thei:: own policies in 
the matter. 

36. The French delegation attached special import­
ance to the future of the United Nations social defence 
programme, as social defence was one of the key­
stones of social action. The United ?lations was par­
ticularly well placed for effective a::tion. But it was 
important that such work should be undertaken by a 
team of experts who were alive to the traditions handed 
down by the International Penal and Pnnitentiary Com­
mission and receptive to the new prcblems raised by 
the advances in the developing countz ies . Paragraphs 
3 to 6 of resolution 731 F (XXVID), which had the 
whole-hearted support of the French ielegation, were 
designed to cover those two points. 
37 . Economic development and soc tal development 
were more than interdependent; they ·were in fact two 
aspects of the same process of social evolution and 
development, as was illustrated, for iru.tance, by demo­
graphic problems. At first s ight, the in· ~reasingly r apid 
growth of the world population seented particularly 
alarming, because it chiefly affected u ,e countries with 
the s mallest resources. But experienc e had shown that 
pessimistic conclusions need not be d:·awnfrompopu­
lation projections which were mer el:r working hypo­
theses. In point of fact, some over-populated countries 
with small resources had a fairly ~ atisfactory and 

1/Unlted Nallons publication, Sa les No.: 59.1V.l. 

improving level of living, while other countries which 
were under-populated were in a precarious position 
despite the efforts of their Governments and their 
sometimes considerable natural resources. It might be 
deduced that the situation of the under-developed coun­
tries was affected by a qualitative or social factor, 
which was perhaps ofprimaryimportance. Community 
development, the purpose of which was to facilitate the 
adaptation of a society to a new way of life, might ac­
cordingly prove the best weapon in the battle against 
under-development, which was one of the most crucial 
problems of the current time. In order to achieve its 
purpose, it must be both an end in itself and a means; 
its primary aim was to encourage local initiative and 
personal effort with a view to the organization of ac­
tivities and institutions, and its secondary aim, to 
help Governments to secure the support ofthe popula­
tion for the execution of national development schemes. 

38. Mr. QUIAMBAO (Philippines) said that like the 
majority of under-developed Asian countries which 
were trying to achieve economic and social progress 
for the purpose of safeguarding their political inde­
pendence, the Phillipines attached great importance to 
the work of the Economic and Social Council and its 
subsidiary organs. Consideration of the Council's re­
port (A/4143) provided states Members of the United 
Nations with an opportunity for a valuable discussion 
of the most suitable means of improving the world 
economic and social situation. 

39. Despite definite advances, the gap between the 
levels of living in the highly industrialized countries 
and the under-developed countries was steadily widen­
ing and future prospects were not particularly en­
couraging. The Economic and Social Council ought 
therefore to redouble its efforts in that field. 

40. The International Survey of Programmes of Social 
Development (E/CN.S/332) had the merit of pin­
pointing social problems and promoting international 
co-operation by stressing the value of exchanges of 
information among the various countries of the world. 

41. His delegatio;,, which had been one of the sponsors 
of the draft resolution concerning balanced and inte­
grated economic and social progress adopted by the 
General Assembly as resolution 1161 (XII). was grati­
fled at the prominence given to that question in the 
Council's report. H the gap between levels of living 
was to be eliminated, the greatest attention must be 
paid to the relation between economic and social 
problems. 

42. The report ofthe Population Commission'!/ called 
attention to an important problem, namely, the ac­
celer ating growth of population. In order to meet the 
difflculties which would inevitably result, appropriate 
measures would have to be taken, particularly in the 
under-developed countries. His delegation, aware of 
the growing magnitude and urgency of population prob­
lems in the developing countries of both Asia and 
Africa, unreservedly supported the Population Com­
mission's recommendations, which were outlined in 
paragraph 451 of the Council's report (A/4143). 

43. An effective contribution to the execution of na­
tional plans and the establishment of permanent ser­
vices to improve economic and social conditions was 
being made by UNICEF. It would be desirable if the 

.!'Official Records or the Econom lc and Social Counc ll, Twenty-seventh 
Session, SuPPlement No, 3. 



933rd meeting-22 October 1959 129 

execution of the various UNICEF-assisted projects 
could be accelerated. His Government wished to ex­
press its gratitude to the Fund, from which it had re­
ceived valuable assistance, in particular, in carrying 
out a large-scale maternal and child welfare pro­
gramme and two nutrition programmes. 

44. The right of everyone to be free from arbitrary 
arrest, detention and exile was of particular interest 
to the Philippine delegation, as the head of that dele­
gation was Chairman of the Committee studying the 
question. With regard to the programme of advisory 
services in the field of human rights, he recalled that 
at the thirteenth session of the General Assembly his 
delegation had expressed the wish that seminars on sub­
jects of interest to countries in different parts of the 
world should be organized on an interregional or an 
international level. It was a fact that the same question 
was sometimes examined by several regional seminars 
set up in different parts of the world. He would not 
submit a formal proposal on the matter because he 
was aware that many difficulties were involved in the 
planning of seminars. 

45. The periodic reports on human rights were most 
valuable in spite of their deficiencies and defects. 
They were all the more useful as the preparation of 
the International Covenants on Human Rights might 
make only slow progress because of the negative at­
titude of some of the major Powers. 

46. Mrs. SALJOOKI (Afghanistan), speaking for all 
the men and women of her country, whose children had 
benefited from the efforts made by UNICEF, paid a 
tribute to all those who, in one way or another, had 
made it possible for that agency to play an increasingly 
useful role each year. It was very encouraging to note 
that UNICEF was continuing to broaden its activities 
and that Governments, non-governmental organiza­
tions and private individuals were showing ever more 
willingness to participate in its work. Unfortunately, 
there was' still much to be done and her delegation 
wished to draw attention to the importance ofthe activi­
ties of UNICEF. She had expressed her views in detail 
at the twenty-seventh session of the Economic and 
Social Council 21 and could only repeat that she would 
support any judicious and effective proposal which 
might be put before a United Nations organ in con­
nexion with the work of UNICEF. A list should be 
drawn up of the most urgent needs in the various re­
gions of the world, strictly on the basis of humani­
tarian considerations. The possibility should also be 
examined of setting up organizations in the various 
countries to encourage the population to take an interest 
in the position of the child. Her delegation stressed 
the importance of information; provision should be 
made for the dissemination of information in the lan­
guage of the countries needing it and all existing media 
should be used for that purpose. 

47, A number of representatives had again expressed 
their satisfaction that opium cultivation had beenpro­
hibited in Afghanistan. At its thirteenth session, the 
General Assembly had recognized, in its resolution 
1259 (XIII), that country's need for technical assist­
ance for the full execution of the policy in question. 
The United Nations technical assistance services and 
the Afghan Government were currently considering 
ways of carrying out that resolution. Furthermore, 

2/Ibid., 1064th and 1065th meetings, 

she drew attention to resolution 626 G (XXII), adopted 
by the Council on the recommendation ofthe Commis­
sion on Narcotic Drugs at its eleventh session,W re­
cording Afghanistan's request to be included among 
the countries referred to in article 6 of the proposed 
single convention. 

48. Mr. VIDAL GABAS (Spain), after pointing to the 
interdependence of social and economic phenomena, 
referred to social activities which were humanitarian 
in nature. Hecongratulatedthemembersofthe UNICEF 
Executive Board on the work done for children. It was 
to be hoped, for the sake of the millions of children 
who were still in need, that UNICEF, which had al­
ready made such praiseworthy efforts, would have 
increased resources at its disposal and would enjoy 
the co-operation of FAO, WHO and UNESCO. Although 
his delegation was not directly concerned with the anti­
malaria campaign or the control of narcotic drugs, it 
would support all activities in those two fields. 

49. With regard to social activities which raised legal 
and political problems, his delegation was particularly 
interested in the study and control of migration. In 
many countries, including Spain, a part of the popu­
lation was compelled to emigrate. Such large groups 
of people moving from one country to another pre­
sented extremely serious problems and the Inter­
Governmental Committee for European Migration 
(ICEM) was playing a very useful role in that respect 
by facilitating the transportation and settlement of 
migrants. But there were tasks which went beyond the 
jurisdiction of the ICEM and of Governments and were 
dependent on international action, such as the prepara­
tion of statistics, the dissemination of information on 
habitable areas and on the economic possibilities they 
offered, the definition of the international status ofthe 
migrant, and assistance to refugees. In that connexion, 
he pointed out that an Immigration Congress was cur­
rently being held in Spain. While the position of mi­
grants should be improved, countries of immigration 
could not be denied the right to close their frontiers 
and to set up appropriate controls. 

50. With regard to population movements within a 
country, efforts had to be made to check migration 
to the towns, which resulted in unsanitary conditions, 
over-population and delinquency in urban areas, and in 
a shortage of labour, a decline in agricultural produc­
tion and a rise inthepriceoffoodstuffs in rural areas. 
The housing problem was linked to that of migration 
to the towns. His Government attached great import­
ance to that problem and had set up a whole series of 
organizations and agencies to improve housing condi­
tions for the population as a whole. No effort would be 
spared in order to do away with the sordid slums 
which endangered not only the health but also the 
morality of those living in them. It would redound to 
the credit of the Committee, which had just drawn up 
a declaration affecting hundreds of millions of human 
beings, to issue an appeal to all Governments, to all 
the United Nations organs and to the specialized agen­
cies to seek a solution to that important and serious 
problem. 

51. Mr. SUTANTO (Indonesia) drew attention to the 
striking discrepancy between the extraordinary scien­
tific achievements of modern times and the inability 
of a number of States to solve their economic and 

Q/ Ibid., Twenry-second Session, SupPlement No, 8, annex II, resolu­
tion II A. 



130 General Ass· ~mbly - Fourteenth Session - Third Committee -----------------------------
social problems. In spite of the efforts made by the 
United Nations and the specialized age11cies, the devel­
oping countries had not succeeded h: making satis­
factory social and economic progres :;, It was to be 
hoped t hat the relaxation of international tension would 
make it possible to r educe mUitary 3xpenditure and 
consequently to devote additional resources to con­
structive purposes. In any case, the goal would not 
be achieved unless the developingcount.ries intensified 
their efforts and the international community gave 
proof of a greater s pirit of solidarity. 

52. It was discouraging that the rate of social progress 
had slowed down since 1953, but it rr.ust be r emem­
bered that the developing countries, 1 hough aware of 
the close connexlon between economic and social con­
ditions tended to give priority elth4tr to economic 
projects or to social programmes which would have 
the effect of increasing productivity. The housing 
problem convincingly Ulustrated the i 1terdependence 
of economic and social factors . His Oovernment at­
tached great importance to long- range programmes of 
concerted international action in the field of low-cost 
hous ing and r e lated community facill'.ies. It had al­
r eady taken a number of measures to remedy the 
hous ing s hortage and wished to thank thE• United Nations 
for having provided it with the services of a town­
planning expert and having contributed to the estab­
lishment of a regional housing cent:·e at Bandung, 
which served other South-East Asian countries as well 
as Indonesia. 

53 . Since 1956 Indonesia had been eng:tged in a com­
munity development programme, and had established 
a network of administrative services for that purpose, 
organized in s ixteen d.lstr.lcts. The tec :mique of com­
munity development was particularly .veil adapted to 
the structure of Indonesian society, w 1ich was based 
on the principle of mutual help, The programme pr o­
vided for the construction of roads and)ridges, school 
buildings, hospitals, social centres and libraries. How­
ever, because of the lack of resourc•!S and trained 
personnel, the results of the programrr.e had not been 
as satisfactory as had been hoped. T.te Ministry of 

Litho ln U.N. 

Social Affairs had nevertheless set up 12 ,000 to 13,000 
soci~l centres in the villages to unde rtake similar 
work. 

54. An International Health and Medical Research 
Year would help to underscore the importance of 
health problems and encourage peoples and Govern­
ments to redouble their efforts to attain satisfactory 
standards in that field. His delegation hoped that the 
Year might be organized in the relatively near future. 

55. The wor ld population situation posed serious prob­
lems to which all Governments should give close at­
tention, The accelerating growth of population was one 
of the factors which prevented the developing countries 
from making the needed improvement in the le vels of 
living of their people , Although future United Nations 
studies would indeed be of ass istance inevaluatlngthe 
magnitude of t he population problem, the most ap­
propriate approach to its solution would be the ac­
celeration of economic and social development to such 
an extent that the increase in production would s urpass 
the increase in population. 

56. Indonesia, to which UNICEF had given valuable 
assistance since 1948 and which knew how effectively 
that agency operated, had been greatly concerned to 
note that for the first time s ince 1954 the resources 
of the Fund had decreased. However, it was encourag• 
ing to note that UNICEF activities we re receiving the 
enthusiastic support of Governments and peoples. In 
spite of the efforts already made, there were still 
hundreds of millions of children in the world who were 
not assisted by the Fund. It was to be hoped that the 
privileged nations would show their goodwill and spare 
no effort to enable UNICEF to carry out its work. 

57. He drew attention to the wide scope of the work 
done by the Commission on the Status of Women. The 
status of women was continuing to improve in all fields 
and he wished to congratulate the wome n of Afghanistan 
on t he increasing part they were playing, s ide by side 
with men, in education and health. 

The meeting rose at 6.15 p.m. 

77301-May 19~2.025 




